
 

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Louise Hancock, Senior Democratic Services Officer or Steve 
Loach, Democratic Services Tel: 01609 767015 or 01609 532216  
or e-mail louise.hancock@northyorks.gov.uk or Stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk 

Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

                                            
Agenda 

Notice of a public meeting of 

Strategic Planning Committee 
  

To: Councillors Andy Brown, Tom Jones, Andrew Lee, 
John Mann, Steve Mason, John McCartney, Bob Packham 
(Vice-Chair), Andy Paraskos (Chair), Yvonne Peacock, 
Neil Swannick, Roberta Swiers, Richard Foster, 
Hannah Gostlow and David Hugill. 

Date: Tuesday, 9th April, 2024 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: The Grand Meeting Room, County Hall, Northallerton, DL7 
8AD 

Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those items taken in 
open session. Please contact Louise Hancock or Stephen Loach of Democratic Services (contact 
details below) if you have any queries. Recording is allowed at Council, committee and sub-
committee meetings which are open to the public. Please give due regard to the Council’s protocol 
on audio/visual recording and photography at public meetings. Anyone wishing to record is asked 
to contact, prior to the start of the meeting, the named democratic services officer supporting this 
committee. We ask that any recording is clearly visible to anyone at the meeting and that it is non-
disruptive.  
 
The Council operates a scheme for public speaking at planning committee meetings. Normally 
the following people can speak at planning committee in relation to any specific application on the 
agenda: a speaker representing the applicant, a speaker representing the objectors, a parish 
council representative and the local Division councillor. Each speaker has a maximum of three 
minutes to put their case. If you wish to register to speak through this scheme, then please 
notify Louise Hancock or Stephen Loach of Democratic Services (contact details below) by 
midday on Thursday 4th April 2024 If you are exercising your right to speak at this meeting, but 
do not wish to be recorded, please inform the Chairman who will instruct anyone who may be 
taking a recording to cease while you speak.  
 
The meeting will be available to view live through the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings   
Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also available there 
 

Business 
 
1.   Chair's welcome, introductions and apologies 

 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:louise.hancock@northyorks.gov.uk
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

 
 

OFFICIAL 

2.   Minutes of the meeting held on 12th March 2024 
 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

4.   ZG2023/1263/FULM - Planning application for the erection of 
Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) school at land 
to the south of Hull Road, Osgodby, Selby. 
 

(Pages 11 - 38) 

5.   Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman should, 
by reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of 
urgency 
 

 

 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
28th March 2024 

Page 2



 

NYC Strategic Planning Committee - 
 Minutes – 12 March 2024 

 

OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

 

Strategic Planning Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held at Civic Centre, Selby on Tuesday 12 March 2024 at 10am. 
 
Present:- 
 
Councillors Bob Packham (Vice-Chair in the Chair), Andy Brown, Richard Foster, Hannah 
Gostlow, David Hugill, George Jabbour (as substitute for Andy Paraskos), Tom Jones, Nigel 
Knapton (as substitute for Andrew Lee), John Mann, John McCartney, Steve Mason, Yvonne 
Peacock, Neil Swannick and Roberta Swiers,  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Andrew Lee and Andy Paraskos 
 
Other Members – Councillor Tim Grogan – registered as a speaker. 
 
Officers present: Hannah Blackburn, Dawn Drury, Martin Grainger, Louise Hancock, Glenn 
Sharpe, Jenny Tyreman, Steve Loach,  
 
There were 7 members of the public – including 3 registered speakers  
 
 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book  

 

 
39. Welcome and Introductions. 
 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of this Committee, and informed 
Members that the meeting was being recorded, therefore they would need to introduce 
themselves when speaking and would need to use the microphones. 
 

40. Minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2024  
 
 Resolved - 

 
That the Minutes of the meeting of North Yorkshire County Council’s Strategic Planning 
Committee, held on 9 January 2024, be confirmed by Members and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 

 
41. Declarations of Interest 
 
 All Members present declared that they had been lobbied by both applicant and objectors 

in relation to Minute No 42, below, 2019/0547/EIA - Planning application for the 
construction of a Motorway Service Area (MSA) on land at Lumby, South Milford, Leeds, 
but had kept an open mind in relation to their consideration of the application. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

NYC Strategic Planning Committee - 
 Minutes – 12 March 2024 

 

OFFICIAL 

42. 2019/0547/EIA - Planning application for the construction of a 
Motorway Service Area (MSA) on land at Lumby, South Milford, 
Leeds 
 
Considered -  

  
The report of the Assistant Director Planning – Community Development Services 
requesting Members to determine a planning application ref. 2019/0547/EIA - Planning 
application for the construction of a Motorway Service Area (MSA) on land at Lumby, 
South Milford, Leeds. 
 
This application was reported to Strategic Planning Committee due to it being reported to 
the former Selby District Council Planning Committee on 15th March 2023 and the 
resolution being that the Members were minded to grant this subject to further 
consideration of a full suite of conditions and further detail on the section 106 agreement 
at the North Yorkshire Council Strategic Planning Committee. 
 
Councillor Tim Grogan, the Divisional Member, addressed the Committee, highlighting 
the following:- 
 

• He had previously supported the application when it had been considered by the 
former Selby District Council Planning Committee. He continued his support for 
the application, which had been unanimously supported at the Selby District 
Council Planning meeting and disagreed with the recommendation for refusal. 

• He outlined that the area where the proposed MSA was to de developed, despite 
being in the green belt, was best described as scrubland between two very busy 
roads. 

• He highlighted the industrial nature of the site area and the developments that 
were located in that vicinity. 

• He considered that the proposed millions of pounds of investment would help to 
revitalise that area and bring much needed economic development. 

• He also highlighted the issues created by HGVs in the area and how the 
proposed 100 HGV parking spaces would help to alleviate those. 

 
Local resident, Georgina Ashton addressed the Committee, highlighting the following:- 
 

• The former Selby District Council Planning Committee were minded to approve 
the original application. There was also general support from Selby’s Head of 
Planning. 

• It was suggested that the application should then be referred to the Strategic 
Planning Committee, but there was a possibility of different view from this 
meeting and it was asked how the inconsistency with the original decision could 
be justified. 

• It was understood that the drainage issues from the original application were to 
be addressed through this application, as set out in the report to the Committee. 

• The majority of existing MSAs are situated within the green belt and had been 
developed as the significant investment within areas outweighed the impact on 
the green belt area, and this area would greatly benefit from that investment. 

 
Local resident, Harling Kaye, addressed the Committee, highlighting the following:- 
 

• He referred to the provision of HGV parking and facilities for HGV drivers at the 
proposed MSA, which were not available at the nearby facilities at Boroughbridge 
and Ferrybridge. 

Page 4



 

NYC Strategic Planning Committee - 
 Minutes – 12 March 2024 

 

OFFICIAL 

• He highlighted the issues caused to local communities due to the lack of 
appropriate facilities for HGV drivers. 

• He also outlined the need to recruit HGV drivers and how improved facilities could 
widen the demographic for recruitment to that industry. 

• He considered that the health and wellbeing of HGV drivers was very important 
and the provision of improved facilities through the development of the MSA 
would assist in addressing that. 

 
Roisin Morris, representing the applicant, addressed the Committee, highlighting the 
following:- 

 

• She noted that there was local support for the application 

• The distance to other sites with equivalent facilities was sufficient to require the 
development to take place and demonstrated the need. 

• There was no appropriate alternative site. 

• The site was not the best quality green belt land and would provide good quality 
economic development for the area. 

• The parking of HGVs in local communities had links to crime and created a 
nuisance. The provision of appropriate facilities at the development would help 
to alleviate this. 

• There were a number of mitigating factors that warranted this development 
within the green belt, and efforts had been made to ensure this was an 
appropriate and sustainable facility. 

• Twenty-five electric vehicle charging points would be provided at the site. 

• The application provided a real opportunity to provide a meaningful legacy with a 
much needed economic benefit for that area. 

 
A representative of the Assistant Director Planning – Community Development Services 
presented the Committee report, highlighting the proposal, the site description, the 
consultation that had taken place, the advertisement and representations, planning 
guidance and policy and planning considerations.  The report also provided a conclusion 
and recommendations. 

  
Detailed plans, photographs and visual information were presented to complement the 
report. 
 
She updated Members by highlighting additional representations that had been received 
since the publication of the papers with further supporting statements for the application. 
She also noted that the Environment Agency had submitted a late objection to the 
application in respect of the satisfactory management of the risks to groundwater. The 
Council, the applicant and the Environment Agency had met to discuss the issues raised 
with dialogue continuing at the time of the meeting. It was considered that the issue was 
not an in principle objection and therefore not insurmountable, with further clarification 
required in respect of what had been agreed already, however this would need to be 
resolved after this meeting.  
 
Members highlighted the following issues during their discussion of the report: 
 

• A Member asked whether those Members who were involved in the previous 
consideration of the application by Selby District Council Planning Committee 
should be considered to have predetermined the application, and should, 
therefore, be excluded from taking part in the meeting. In response it was clarified 
that the original resolution indicated that Members were minded to grant the 
application subject to additional consideration by the Strategic Planning 

Page 5



 

NYC Strategic Planning Committee - 
 Minutes – 12 March 2024 

 

OFFICIAL 

Committee of the Section 106 agreement and the conditions attached to the 
development. The one Member concerned indicated that he had kept an open 
mind on the application subject to the consideration of the Strategic Planning 
Committee, therefore, there was no predetermination. 

• It was noted that protection of the green belt from development related to an 
attempt to prevent urban spread and it was asked whether the proposal would 
impact on this. In response it was stated that purposes of the green belt were 
highlighted within the report and it was considered that the proposed 
development would conflict with the NPPF in terms of this. 

• A Member highlighted the weighting provided within the report, with the green belt 
given substantial weighting, against the economic benefits which were give 
significant weighting, and asked what the difference between these was. Officers 
explained that national green belt policy required substantial weight to be given to 
any harm identified to the green belt and this set a high bar. Only if Members 
considered that the significant weight in policy attributed to economic benefits 
clearly outweighed the substantial harm to the green belt could they consider very 
special circumstances existed in favour of the proposal.Clarification was 
requested as to the various distances between the nearest other service area 
facilities and the proposed development. Members were directed to the report 
contained in Appendix A, which set out the distances between the service area 
facilities. It was stated that Ferrybridge service area was 6 miles away from the 
proposed development and Wetherby was 15 miles away.  Members were 
advised that it was estimated that Blyth was a further 23 miles away from 
Ferrybridge. 

• Referring to the available facilities for HGVs, a Member asked what availability 
there was at the next nearest MSAs. In response it was advised that there was 
HGV parking at both Ferrybridge and Wetherby, but the exact amount was not 
able to be confirmed at the meeting. It was also noted that, other than at 
Eggborough, there were no such other facilities within the Selby district area. 

• It was asked how the major roads within the area had been built without 
impacting on the green belt. There were also some large roundabouts in the 
vicinity of those roads, also located within the green belt. In response it was 
stated that all applications for development within the green belt were determined 
on their own merits, and that some of these schemes may have  been part of 
national infrastructure plans. The effects of numerous developments within the 
green belt would need to be taken account of, however. 

• A Member asked for further details of the objection raised by the Environment 
Agency. In response it was stated that the original consultation had not seen 
them raise any objections, but they had now raised concerns regarding the 
satisfactory management of the risks to groundwater as a result of deep bore 
soakaways being proposed. The matter had now been the subject of discussion 
between the Council, the applicant and the Environment Agency, and there was 
some confidence that the matter would be resolved. Members asked how the 
application could be determined with this objection still in place. In response it 
was stated that, if Members were minded to approve the application, the 
outstanding objection be delegated to the Assistant Director Planning, in 
consultation with the Chair, to resolve with the applicant and the Environment 
Agency, prior to the application being referred to the Secretary of State for 
determination. 

• It was clarified that other nearby services on the A63 were not taken account of 
as these were not MSAs. 

• It was asked how the various costs associated with HGV drivers’ use of the MSA 
compared to other MSAs. Details were provided and it was noted that the 
charges were comparable with some cheaper and others dearer. 

Page 6



 

NYC Strategic Planning Committee - 
 Minutes – 12 March 2024 

 

OFFICIAL 

• A Member noted that details provided by the applicant indicated that a passenger 
bus service would be provided to local communities as part of the proposals for 
the development. It was stated that provision of the bus service was included 
within the proposed conditions and the details of the provision would be detailed 
when those were discharged, should the application be eventually approved. 
 

Members highlighted the following issues during the debate of the report: 
 

• Despite the site for the proposed MSA being in the green belt, this was the most 
appropriate place for the development in the Selby area, and the Divisional 
Member had given an appropriate definition of the nature of the land at that 
location. The provision of appropriate facilities for HGV drivers was also a major 
factor for the area as this would alleviate much of the night parking taking place. 

• A Member queried whether development within the green belt was appropriate in 
terms of environmental concerns. He had noted with interest the issues raised by 
the various speakers and had noted the quality of the land at that location. There 
was also the economic benefits that the development would bring to that area. 
There was strong local support for the application and from many of the statutory 
consultees. He considered that the balance favoured approval of the application. 

• It was emphasised that the application did not seek to extend a town or city, the 
reason for green belt land being in place, but was ancillary to the infrastructure 
already in place there. The HGV driver facilities were also a major deciding factor 
in favour of the proposal. 

• It was recognised by a number of Members that there were significant factors for 
both approving and refusing the application, and there was a fine balance 
between the two. Good points had been made in relation to both decisions, and, 
despite the condition of the related land, it was still classified as green belt. 
Opportunities to provide additional benefits, such as the provision of solar panels 
on over the HGV parking area within the development, appeared to have been 
missed, and should Members be minded to approve it was hoped there would be 
further exploration of such issues. 

• The only compelling argument for approval of the application was the distance 
between the proposed MSA and other similar facilities and it was considered that 
this was not strong enough when taking account of the proximity of the MSAs at 
Ferrybridge and Wetherby. The legislation relating to green belt land could not 
simply be ignored and should not be lost sight of against the potential for 
economic benefits. 

• Substantial versus significant had to be taken account up when weighing up the 
decision on this application. There appeared to be a strong optimistic view 
portrayed by the applicant and a more subjective view should be taken. 

• Alongside all the other mitigating factors for Members being minded to approve 
the application there was also the provision of much needed additional electric 
vehicle charging points, particular in locations where drivers were embarking on 
long journeys. 

 
A proposal for the officer’s recommendation for refusal did not receive a seconder. 

 
Resolved – 
 

(i) That the Committee is minded to grant planning permission, subject to the 
conditions and S106 obligations set out in the Officer’s report, on the basis that 
very special circumstances had been demonstrated that clearly outweighed the 
identified harms to the Green Belt;  

 

Page 7



 

NYC Strategic Planning Committee - 
 Minutes – 12 March 2024 

 

OFFICIAL 

(ii) that the decision is delegated to the Assistant Director of Planning in consultation 
with the Chair following the positive resolution of the discussions with the 
Environment Agency and referral to the Secretary of State under the Departure 
the Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009 as set 
out in the Officer’s report. 

 
Voting on this resolution was as follows:- 
 
10 for 
3 against 
1 abstention 
  

43. 2020/0045/PROW - Public Bridleway 35.59/13 land at Lumby, 
Parish of South Milford Diversion Order 2024 
 
Considered – 
 
The report of the Assistant Director Planning – Community Development Services 
requesting Members:- 
 
(i) To determine the making of a Public Path Diversion Order, which would then be 

subject to the required consultation. 
(ii) To give delegation to Officers to confirm the Public Path Diversion Order following 

the expiry of a 28-day consultation period, subject to no objections being received 
or objections that were received through the consultation period being 
subsequently withdrawn within two months after the expiration of the objection 
period. Where objections were received within the specified time limit and were not 
subsequently withdrawn within two months after the expiration of the objection 
period, that delegation was given to Officers to refer the Public Path Diversion 
Order to the Secretary of State.  

(iii) To give delegation to Officers to certify the Public Path Diversion Order following 
the completion of the diversion works in accordance with the Order (where the 
Public Path Diversion Order had been confirmed in (ii) above). 

 
The application was reported to Committee due to it being a proposal to divert a public 
highway affected by development and the proposal directly relating to planning application 
2019/0547/EIA which was also being reported to Committee. 
 
A representative of the Assistant Director Planning – Community Development Services 
presented the Committee report, highlighting the prosed diversion order, how this related 
to planning application 2019/0547/EIA and the process required for this to take place. 
  
Members highlighted the following issues during their discussion of the report: 
 

• It was clarified that the report had been brought to this Committee as it was entirely 
related to the earlier application. 

• It was further clarified that applicant would be responsible for paying for the works 
involved in the diversion and that it would not be covered in the s106 agreement 
pertaining to planning application 2019/0547/EIA.  

 
Resolved – 
 
i) That approval be granted for the making of the Public Path Diversion Order, which 

would then be subject to the required consultation;  

Page 8



 

NYC Strategic Planning Committee - 
 Minutes – 12 March 2024 

 

OFFICIAL 

ii) That delegation be given to Officers to confirm the Public Path Diversion Order 

following the expiry of a 28 day consultation period, subject to no objections being 

received or objections that were received through the consultation period being 

subsequently withdrawn within two months after the expiration of the objection 

period. Where objections were received within the specified time limit and were not 

subsequently withdrawn within two months after the expiration of the objection 

period, that delegation was given to Officers to refer the Public Path Diversion Order 

to the Secretary of State;  

iii) That delegation be given to Officers to certify the Public Path Diversion Order 

following the completion of the diversion works in accordance with the Order (where 

the Public Path Diversion Order had been confirmed in (ii) above). 

Members approved the resolution unanimously 
 
(NB – Councillors Richard Foster, Yvonne Peacock and Neil Swannick had left the 
meeting prior to consideration of Minute No. 43, above). 

 
 
 

  
The meeting concluded at 12.10pm 
 
SML 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire Council 

 

Community Development Services 
 

Strategic Planning Committee 
 

9TH APRIL 2024 
 

ZG2023/1263/FULM- ERECTION OF A NEW SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND 
DISABILITIES (SEND) SCHOOL WITH ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING, PARKING AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW ACCESS FROM HULL ROAD AT LAND OFF HULL ROAD 
OSGODBY NORTH YORKSHIRE  

 
Report of the Assistant Director Planning – Community Development Services 

 

1.0  Purpose of the Report 

1.1     To determine a planning application for the planning application for the erection of a 
new special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) school with associated 
landscaping, parking and construction of a new access. 

1.2     This application has been reported to Committee as it is considered that the 

application raises significant strategic planning issues that affect more than one 
area committee geography given the nature of the proposal. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY 
 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that Planning Committee grant 
planning permission for the proposed development subject to the conditions 
recommended in this report.  
 

2.1. This is a planning application for the erection of Special Education Needs and 
Disabilities (SEND) school at land to the south of Hull Road, Osgodby.  The site 
comprises agricultural fields bisected by a public right of way.  Houses lie to the north 
and Selby Garden Centre to the west.  Playing fields would be provided to the south 
and car parking and highways access taken from Hull Road to the east. 
 

2.2. The site does not lie within the designated development limit of Osgodby, however it 
is a draft allocation within the emerging Selby Local Plan (OSBB-N).  The provision of 
new schools is supported by SDLP Policy CS2. 
 

2.3. The proposed design and site layout is considered acceptable and landscape impact 
can be mitigated.  There are no objections on grounds of highway safety, drainage or 
flood risk, ecology, contamination or noise.  The proposal is not considered to result 
in harm to neighbouring residential amenity of neighbouring properties.  Community 
use of the site is welcomed.  
 

2.4. It is considered that the provision of a SEND school will result in public benefits to 
education provision within Selby Area and wider catchment and will provide wider 
community benefits. 
 

2.5. In conclusion, it is recommended that planning permission be granted for the erection 
of a SEND school at Hull Road Osgodby subject to the conditions as set out in this 
report. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

2 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 12



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

3 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

3.0 PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 
3.1. Access to the case file on Public Access can be found here:- ZG2023/1263/FULM | 

Erection of a new special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) school with associated 
landscaping, parking and construction of a new access from Hull Road | Land Off Hull Road 
Osgodby North Yorkshire (selby.gov.uk) 
 

3.2. The following relevant planning history has been identified for the application site: 

3.3 2022/1075/SCN - Environmental Impact Assessment Screening Opinion for Proposed 
Special Educational Needs (SEND) School. EIA not required 31.10.2022. 

 
3.4 ZG2023/1168/SCN - EIA Screening opinion request for the erection of a new special 

educational needs and disabilities (SEND) school with associated landscaping, 
parking and construction of a new access from Hull Road on land off Hull Road 
Osgodby. EIA not required 29.11.2023. 
 

4.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
4.1 The application site lies to the south of the A63 Hull Road and extends over two fields 

(2.6 ha), the school building and playing fields would lie within the western section 
with highway access and car parking to the east.  The site is bisected by a hedged 
Public Right Of Way (PROW) 35.5/5/1 running north/south through the middle of the 
site. 

 
4.2 The western part of the site contains the school building and playing fields and is 

square in shape.  There are dwellings to the north with a mix of hedge and fence 
boundaries.  To the west is Selby Garden Centre, with a mesh fence boundary.  The 
eastern boundary is the hedged (PROW) and the site is open to the south.  The 
eastern part of the site will be used for access and car parking and is triangular in 
shape.  The boundary with the A63 Hull Road is open with a verge and trees along 
the highway edge.  There are dwellings to the northern (opposite) side of the A63.  
The site is open to the south and slopes gently to the south. 

 
4.3 There are no statutory national or local landscape or wildlife designations on the 

application site. The site does not contain any protected trees and there is no 
Conservation Area or nearby Listed Buildings that are affected.  The majority of the 
site lies within Flood Zone 1, with part of the site to the south-west within Flood Zones 
2 and 3. 

 
5.0 DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
5.1 The school will provide education for pupils between 3-19 years of age with a wide 

range of special needs.  All school facilities are to be contained within the western 
portion of the application site.  The school building would be two storeys in height 
with a flat roof.  Building materials are shown to be a mix of brick and cladding with 
powder-coated aluminium doors and windows. 

 
5.2 Internally the building will comprise general and specialist classrooms over both 

floors and ground floor offices.  A dining area and multi-use sports hall are shown to 
the eastern end of the site and these areas can be zoned off for out of hours 
community use.  The school has an overall capacity of 100, which is split between 
nursery/reception, primary (KS1-KS2), secondary (KS3- KS4) and sixth form (KS5), 
with 70 staff.  

 
5.2 An outdoor play area is shown to the north.  A grass playing field and multi-use 

games area (MUGA) will be to the south of the main building.   Page 13

https://public.selby.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://public.selby.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://public.selby.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://public.selby.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

4 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
5.3 Car parking, drop-off areas and the main access routes for vehicles, cycles and 

pedestrians will be taken from the east.  Vehicular access to the site is to be taken 
from the A63 Hull Road with a 76-car parking area located within the eastern portion 
of the site.  Cycle parking is also proposed.  A secondary pedestrian and cycle 
access point is shown from the north, running parallel to the PROW.  It is not 
intended that the PROW be used for school access.  A section of the PROW hedge 
will be removed to allow for access between the car park and school buildings and 
the PROW will be gated at this point.  
 

5.4 A 2.4m high fence is proposed to the perimeter of the main school site, set back from 
the northern boundary to allow for maintenance.  Landscaping is shown to all site 
boundaries, in particular to the south of the school building and along the A63 
boundary. 

 
5.5 Out-of-hours community use of the sports hall, MUGA and playing field is proposed 

as part of the development. 
 

5.6 The application is supported by a suite of technical documents that may be viewed 
on Public Access.  Several amendments have been made to the submission 
throughout its consideration and these have mainly been to address drainage and 
highway matters.   

 
6.0 PLANNING POLICY AND GUIDANCE 
 
6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that all 

planning authorities must determine each application under the Planning Acts in 
accordance with Development Plan so far as material to the application unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Adopted Development Plan  
 

6.2. The Adopted Development Plan for this site is: 
 
- Selby District Core Strategy Local Plan, adopted 22 October 2013. 
- Those policies in the Selby District Local Plan, adopted on 8 February 2005, 

which were saved by the direction of the Secretary of State and which have not 
been superseded by the Core Strategy. 

- Minerals and Waste Joint Plan, adopted 16 February 2022. 
- Osgodby Village Design Statement. 

 
 Emerging Development Plan – Material Consideration 
 
6.3. The Emerging Development Plan for this site is: 

 
- Selby District Council Local Plan Publication Version 2022 (Reg 19) 
 
On 17 September 2019, Selby District Council agreed to prepare a new Local Plan. 
Consultation on issues and options took place early in 2020 and further consultation 
took place on preferred options and additional sites in 2021. The Pre-submission 
Publication Local Plan (under Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Development) (England) Regulations 2012, as amended), including supporting 
documents, associated evidence base and background papers, was subject to formal 
consultation that ended on 28th October 2022. The Council is currently consulting on 
a further Revised Pre Submission Publication (Regulation 19) Consultation prior to 
Submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination.  
 

Page 14



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

5 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF, given the stage of preparation following 
the consultation process and depending on the extent of unresolved objections to 
policies and their degree of consistency with the policies in the NPPF, the policies 
contained within the emerging Local Plan can be given weight as a material 
consideration in decision making. 
 
- The North Yorkshire Local Plan - no weight can be applied in respect of this 

document at the current time as it is at an early stage of preparation. 
 
Guidance - Material Considerations 
 

6.4. Relevant guidance for this application is: 
- National Planning Policy Framework, 2021 
- National Planning Practice Guidance 

 
7.0 CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
7.1. Consultation responses have been summarised below.  Full details can be viewed on 

Public Access.  
 

7.2. NYC Highways – Initially requested a variety of documents be amended prior to 
finalising comments, which the agents undertook.   
 
Highways assessed the further amended plans and additional information, and 
confirmed that most of the Highway Authorities original concerns have been 
addressed.  The Traffic Modelling has been rerun to show an opening year of 2025 
and a Base Year with committed developments and the proposed development of 
2030.  The data produced does show that the access and the surrounding junctions 
will operate satisfactorily.  However, the applicant has not provided details for the trip 
generation associated with the out of hours use.  This is therefore to be controlled by 
condition i.e. requiring a scheme to be submitted, to ensure that the level of out of 
hours use does not negatively impact on the highway network. 

 
Several amended plans as detailed above have been submitted to address the 
design issues raised.  However, the swept path analysis drawing shows a refuse 
vehicle with a length of 7.9 metres.  NYC’s standard refuse vehicles are 11.2 metres 
in length and therefore a further plan is requested.  Should the drawing show that a 
refuse vehicle and minibus cannot navigate the proposed access road 
simultaneously, then the access road will need widening.  The widening if required is 
likely to be minimal, and therefore would not alter the LHA’s position on this 
application. 

 
7.3. Active Travel England - Supports, subject to conditions relating to travel plan 

monitoring and details of cycle storage areas and finished materials for the shared 
foot/cycle ways. 
 

7.4. NYC Footpaths Officer – Gates to be used across the footpath need to be free 
swinging gates which are only closed at the start and end of the school day.  Locking 
the gates will constitute an obstruction under S143 of the Highways Act 1980. 
 

7.5. Lead Local Flood Authority – Original response – noted the objection from the IDB 

and required full agreement for surface water run off to be agreed with the IDB. The 
IDB have retracted their previous objection to the application and now have given full 
consent. The LLFA now find the management of surface water on the site acceptable, 
subject to conditions requiring details of ‘Exceedance Flow Rates’ and ‘Maintenance’ 
of the drainage infrastructure.  
 

Page 15



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

6 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

7.6. Yorkshire Water – Comments made and recommend condition for site to be 
developed with separated surface/foul water drainage. 
 

7.7. Selby Area IDB – Recommend condition relating to provision of SuDS as per the 
SuDS Drainage Strategy & Flood Risk Assessment submitted. 
 

7.8. Environment Agency – The application needs to pass Sequential and Exception 
Tests.  No objection provided all built development is located within Flood Zone 1.  
The Flood Risk Assessment needs to listed as an approved document. 
 

7.9. Contaminated Land Consultant – No objection subject to a condition relating to 
reporting of unexpected contamination. 
 

7.10. NYC Education – Support - This school will make a significant contribution to the 
overall sufficiency of places across the county and ensure that children in the Selby 
District have a school closer to their own communities and that they do not need to 
travel excessive distances to access appropriate education. 
 

7.11. Sports England - No objection to the proposal as new facilities are to be provided.  
Response includes specific comments raised by the respective National Governing 
Bodies for Sport.   
 

7.12. County Ecologist – General comments made, recommend that the proposed 
Construction and Ecological Management Plan is up-to-date, Biodiversity Net Gain is 
compliant, recommend attach a condition requiring a Landscape and Ecological 
Management Plan (LEMP).  
 

7.13. Natural England – No comments to make on the application. 
 

7.14. Landscape Consultant – No objection, the landscape proposals take an appropriate 
approach. 
 

7.15. Tree Consultant – No objection subject to conditions relating to root protection areas 
and landscaping.  
 

7.16. Conservation Officer - No comments. 
 

7.17. Barlby and Osgodby Parish Council – Supports the application subject to the 
following being addressed: 
 
- Highway speed limit and proposed crossing points need re-considering 
- capacity of existing sewerage and drainage systems 
- proposed orange and yellow cladding at odds with rural landscape 
- proposed access across the PROW considered insecure 
- poor public transport, no safe cycle routes 
- biodiversity to be retained and enhanced 
 

7.18. Campaign to Protect Rural England – Object on the following grounds:  
- The loss of BMV land;  
- The potential impact on existing residential amenity;  
- The design of the building in the open countryside;  

- The impact on the PROW; and  

- The proposals are contrary to local and national planning policy.  
 

Page 16



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

7 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

7.19. Environmental Health – Recommend conditions relating to noise emanating from 
fixed plant, hours of use for the MUGA, deliveries to and from the school, construction 
phase - working hours and continuous noise monitoring. 
 

7.20. Police Designing Out Crime Officer – No concerns and provides recommendations 
relating to moped/motorbike parking, car parking CCTV, installation of intruder alarm 
system. 
 

7.21. North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service – No objection.  
 

7.22. NYCC Footpaths Officer – Advice given on protection of existing public right(s) of 
way, diversion, or temporary closure. 
 

7.23. County Archaeologist – No objection. 
 

7.24. NYCC Minerals and Waste – site is within a Minerals and Waste Safeguarding Area 
for sand and gravel, however, does not fall within the exemption criteria stated in 
paragraph 8.55 of the MWJP (2022) and neds to be assessed against Policy S02. 
 

7.25. Ministry of Defence – No response . 
 

7.26. NYC Waste and Recycling – No response received. 
 

7.27. NHS Primary Care Trust – No response received. 

 
Local Representations 
 

7.28. The application was advertised in the Selby Times and by way of site notice.  There 

have been 185 representations received which are summarised below.  These can be 

read in full on public access.   

 

7.29. 9 letters of OBJECTION were received.  This includes one from Osgodby Residents 

Association however there is no indication within the representation of the number of 

residents represented.  The grounds of objection are: 

 

- visual intrusion 

- scale and design out of character with village/over-dominant/over-bearing 

- proposed cladding colour unacceptable 

- building exceeds two storey height set out in village design statement, single storey 

more appropriate 

- Loss of privacy and light to houses to Hull Road/detrimental to residential amenity 

- loss of Grade 1 agricultural land 

- cut and fill needed to level the site, where is additional material coming from? 

- brownfield site should be used, location already changed 

- location not sustainable, no facilities in the village, poor bus service 

- highway safety, A63 busy main road, potential for accidents, especially at Benymoor 

Lane/Sand Lane/A63 junction 

- additional traffic will lead to loss of air quality 

- concern that the car park will attract anti-social behaviour 

- lights from car park and vehicles detrimental to houses opposite 

- detrimental impact on PROW. Query if proposed gates sufficient for pupil safety 

- public consultation inadequate and residents concerns not taken on board 

- detrimental impact on listed building to the south 

Page 17



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

8 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

- loss of trees and hedges 

- proposed drainage scheme inadequate 

 

1 letter of CONCERN has been received: 

- is the best location for a school within a village? 

- major road safety issue, especially at peak traffic times 

- visibility issues of having filter lane and crossings on a bend in the road 

 

175 letters of SUPPORT were received: 

- SEND provision needed in area 

- existing schools too far away, children having long commutes and unable to make 

local friends 

- concern school too small, can it expand? 

- economic benefits 

- limited houses affected 

- traffic impact less than a mainstream school as many pupils are transported by bus 

or taxi 

- good access to A19 

- welcome provision for wheelchair users but consider that a hydro facility should be 

included  

- building design good 

- community benefits 

- mainstream schools will benefit 

  
8.0 ENVIRONMENT IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
 
8.1 The development proposed does fall within Schedule 2 Category 10(b) of the 2017 

Regulations, being a development that includes more than 1 hectare of urban 
development which is not dwellinghouse development. The Screening Opinion 
issued on the 29.11.23 under ZG2023/1168/SCN determined that no Environment 
Statement is required.  

 
9.0 MAIN ISSUES 
 
9.1. The key considerations in the assessment of this application are: 
 

• Principle of the Development 

• Design 

• Residential amenity 

• Noise impacts 

• Highway considerations 

• Public Rights of Way 

• Heritage considerations 

• Ecology and Biodiversity 

• Landscape Impact 

• Loss of agricultural land 

• Flood risk and drainage 

• Contamination 

• Minerals and waste 

• Community Use 

Page 18



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

9 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
10.0 ASSESSMENT 
 

Principle of Development 
 
10.1.  Relevant policies in respect to the principle of development include the presumption 

in favour of sustainable development Policies SP1 and SP2 of the Core Strategy and 
the national policy contained within the NPPF. Policy SP1 of the Selby District Core 
Strategy Local Plan (2013) (CS) outlines that "when considering development 
proposals, the Council will take a positive approach that reflects the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework" and sets out how this will be undertaken. 

 
10.2 Proposals beyond the Development Limits of Osgodby, in the open countryside, will 

be limited to the replacement of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings of 
an appropriate scale which would contribute towards and improve the local economy 
in accordance with policy SP13 or any other special circumstances.  Saved SDLP 
Policy CS2 permits the development of schools provided they are, amongst other 
things, situated within or adjacent to defined development limits. 

 
10.3 NPPF Paragraph 99(a) states that Local Planning Authorities should give great 

weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools through the preparation of plans 
and decisions on applications. This reflects the Government’s streamlined planning 
process for new schools to ensure delivery more quickly that came into effect on 1 
August 2021.  

 
10.4 The site is also a draft allocation for education within the Revised Publication Local 

Plan.  Whilst the Plan still needs to undergo Examination by an independent 
Examiner, no objections were received to the first public consultation on the Reg 19 
version through the local plan process to the principle of development.  

 
10.5 Within North Yorkshire there are seven maintained special schools and three special 

academies, but none within the Selby Area resulting in pupils travelling outside the 
Selby Area for up to 3 hours a day at a cost for transport and pupil wellbeing.  The 
provision of a SEND school within Selby Area, would be beneficial in terms of pupil 
wellbeing, financial costs for families through reduced travel.   

 
10.6 A sequential test has been submitted which assessed the availability of sites within 

the Principal Town, Local Service Centres and Designated Service Villages within the 
plan area.  The brownfield register was reviewed, and land agents’ websites 
searched.  Sites were assessed on suitability, availability and viability with 
consideration taken of site constraints, including ecological value and flood risk.  
Following review of sites within Selby Area it is concluded that the application site is 
only one available and capable of meeting the needs of the proposed school.  

 
10.7 There are no alternative sites and there is a clear need for SEND provision within 

Selby Area. 
 
10.8 It is therefore considered that the provision of a SEND school in this location on the 

edge of the settlement limit of Osgodby would accord with saved Policy CS2 of the 
Local Plan. The location is sustainable being close to a principal town with good 
transport routes and will be of benefit to the Local Plan area.  Sufficient scope exists 
within Core Strategy Policy SP2 which allows for well-designed new buildings in the 
countryside and the proposal accords with the draft Local Plan allocation.  The 
proposal is therefore acceptable in principle subject to satisfying the requirements of 
other plan policies. 

 
Page 19



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

10 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Section 149 of The Equality Act 2010 

 
10.9 Under Section 149 of The Equality Act 2010 Local Planning Authorities must have 

due regard to the following when making decisions: (i) eliminating discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation; (ii) advancing equality of opportunity between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 
(iii) fostering good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. The protected characteristics are: age 
(normally young or older people), disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. 
 

10.10 The proposed development would not result in a negative effect on any persons of on 
persons with The Equality Act 2010 protected characteristics. It is considered to have 
a positive impact in terms of the provision of facilities for those with additional needs, 
through the specific nature of the development, its design and accessibility, including 
parking provision. 

 
Design 
 

10.11 SDLP Policy ENV1 and CS Policy SP19 seeks high quality design for new buildings.  
 NPPF paragraph 135 states “Planning policies and decisions should ensure that 
developments:… (b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
appropriate and effective landscaping; (c) are sympathetic to local character and 
history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not 
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased 
densities)”.  
 

10.12 The design of the building is functional and reflects its use as a school.  It does not 
take up a disproportionate part of the site and its scale is in keeping with its use.  The 
building massing has been designed with a flat roof to minimise its visual impact, and 
the glazed areas will allow natural light and ventilation into the building. 

 
10.13 The site sits on the edge of the village and due to the building size will be visible in 

wider views from the east (on entry to the village) and from the south/south-west.   
The proposed materials are shown as brick to the ground floor and cladding to the 
first floor.  The plans show the cladding to be a mix of yellow, orange and brown to 
blend with the residential properties of the settlement.  This palette of materials is 
unusual for such a building but would add vibrance to the structure.  Members may 
feel something more subtle is necessary given its semi-rural setting.  Further 
discussions on materials can be undertaken at a later stage and a condition is 
proposed requiring material samples and colour finish to be agreed prior to 
development commencing.  
 

10.14 Subject to future agreement on materials, it is considered that the design of the 
proposed building is acceptable and accords with Local Plan Policy ENV1, Policy 
SP19f the Core Strategy and Section 12 of the NPPF. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 

10.15 Policy in respect to impacts on neighbour amenity and securing a good standard of 
residential amenity are provided by Local Plan Policy ENV1 (1) and (4) and Core 
Strategy Policy SP19.  Paragraph 135(f) of the NPPF encourages the creation of 
places which are safe, inclusive and accessible, promoting well-being ‘with a high 
standard of amenity.’ 
 

10.16 There are dwellings to the immediate north of the proposed school buildings, to the 
north of A63 Hull Road opposite the car park, and to the south-west at St Leonards 

Page 20



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

11 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Avenue.  The development of a new school will undoubtably change the character or 
the land to the rear of the dwellings on Hull Road, from agricultural to an educational 
facility.   

 
10.17  The proposed school will be sited a minimum of 41m from the rear elevations of 

dwellings on Hull Road to the north.  The building itself will be a minimum of 10.4m 
from the garden boundaries.  The proposed separation distances are considered 
acceptable and would not result in a direct loss of privacy.  The outlook from those 
dwellings will change from overlooking fields to built form and there will inevitably be 
a visual impact.  Tree planting within the site will soften the visual impact.  It is not 
considered that there would be any overlooking of the dwellings from persons within 
the school.   

 
10.18 Primary outside play is shown to the north of the school and there may be some 

noise from outside play during the school day, particularly at break and lunchtimes, 
however being a school, this will cease during school holidays and only be limited to 
certain periods within the day.  There may be noise resulting from the future 
community use of the outside sports facilities, however these are sited on the 
southern side of the school building, which would act as a visual and sound barrier.  It 
is not considered that would be a significant harmful impact on the residential 
amenity to the dwellings to the north from the proposal. 
 

10.19 Dwellings on north side of A63 Hull Road heading southeast from Bennymoor Lane 
will face the proposed car park and access point.  The outlook of these dwellings will 
change from overlooking fields to overlooking a car park, and there will inevitably be 
a visual impact.  A new hedgerow and trees will help to reduce visual impact.  It is 
also noted that there will be impacts from the use of the car park in terms of noise 
from car doors and people talking as well as from car park lighting and car 
headlights.  The site boundary is at least 23m from the front elevations of these 
dwellings and the car park itself is 30m distant.  It is considered that there would not 
be any harm resulting from overlooking or loss of privacy to these dwellings, rather 
any impacts will be from the operation of the car park.  The site is also separated 
from these dwellings by the A63 Hull Road, this already results in an element of noise 
and disturbance.  The car park will be busy at school drop off and pick up times 
however this will term time only and also at a time where there would be expected to 
be a higher than normal traffic level on the A63 Hull Road due to rush hour.  A 
condition is suggested to control the lighting and out-of-hours use will be controlled 
through a community use agreement.  It is not therefore considered that would be 
any harm to the residential amenity of those dwellings.  
 

10.20 St Leonards Avenue projects south of the village.  Dwellings at the far south of the 
road are approximately 180m from the site and may have some views of the site 
across the fields, but these would be filtered by the garden centre which sits in 
between.  It is not considered that there would be any issue of overlooking or loss of 
privacy to these dwellings.  There may be some noise and lighting visible from the 
school use and from out of hours use of the sports facilities however given the 
separation distances it is not considered that there would be any harmful impact on 
the residential amenity of these dwellings from the development. 
 

10.21 The proposal will without question change the character of this current agricultural 
setting, which will have some visual impact on the character of the local area and on 
the outlook to neighbouring residents.  No direct overlooking will occur due to the 
separation distances involved, however some disturbance from the use may be 
caused to local residents notwithstanding impacts during the construction phase.  
This however is limited to specific periods and where necessary can be controlled by 
condition.  It is therefore not considered that the impacts are sufficient to warrant the 

Page 21



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

12 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

refusal of the application and thus the proposal complies with Core Strategy Policy 
SP19 and Policies ENV1 and CS2 of the Local Plan.  

 
10.22 In light of the above, as the impacts on residential amenity are considered to be 

minimal and can be mitigated through condition, the proposal would not contravene 
Convention rights contained in the Human Rights Act 1998 in terms of right to private 
and family life.  

 
Environmental Impacts 

 
10.23  SDLP Policy ENV1 and NPPF considers the impact of development on residential 

and local amenity.  SP18 and SP19 of the Core Strategy provides guidance on XXXX 
 

Noise 
 
10.24 Noise sources from the proposed school are likely to come from vehicular 

movements, fixed plant, outdoor play spaces and the multi-use games area (MUGA). 
 
10.25 A Noise Assessment was submitted with the application and considered by 

Environmental Health.  Conditions are recommended to control noise from fixed 
plant, hours of use for the MUGA and sports pitch and deliveries to the school.  A 
Construction Environmental Management Plan is also to be conditioned. This will 
ensure compliance with SDLP Policy ENV 1.  

 
 Air Quality 
 
10.26 No concerns raised about air quality by Environmental Health following submission of 

an Air Quality Assessment, which concluded that the pollutant concentrations were 
predicted to be below the relevant air quality objectives.It is noted that a number of 
electric vehicle charge points are to be provided that would help towards offsetting 
any air quality impacts.  

 
 Contamination 
 
10.27 Local Plan Policy ENV2 and criterion k) of Core Strategy Policy SP19 require 

development which would give rise to or would be affected by unacceptable levels of 
(amongst other things) contamination or other environmental pollution will not be 
permitted unless satisfactory remedial or preventative measures are incorporated 
within new development. Paragraph 189 (a) of the NPPF states that development 
sites should be suitable for the proposed use taking account of ground conditions and 
risks arising from unstable land and contamination.  

 
10.28 Phase 1 (desk-based assessment) and Phase 2 (ground investigation) reports have 

been submitted and have not identified any significant contamination that represent a 
risk to human health at the site and therefore land contamination is unlikely to affect 
the development.  It is recommended that a standard condition to deal with any 
unexpected contamination is attached to any consent. 

 
10.29 In light of the above, the proposal would not contravene Convention rights contained 

in the Human Rights Act 1998 in terms of right to health and right to private and 
family life.  
 
Highway considerations 

 
10.30 Policy in respect to highway safety and capacity is provided by SDLP Policies ENV1 

(2), T1 and T2 and criterion f) of Core Strategy Policy SP15. The aims of these 
policies accord with paragraph 114 (b) of the NPPF which states that development 

Page 22



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

13 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

should ensure that safe and suitable access can be achieved for all users to a site. In 
addition, paragraph 115 which advises that development should only be refused (on 
highway grounds) where it would result in an unacceptable impact on highway safety. 

 
10.26  The proposal by virtue of its type and location is expected to create a high number of 

motor vehicle trips rates. With this in mind the submission contained a suite of 
highway information including a Design and Access Statement, Transport 
Assessment, Construction Environmental Management Plan and Framework Travel 
Plan. This was further supplemented by a Circulation Strategy for the car park and 
detailed construction drawings.   

 
10.27 The proposal involves a new vehicular access off the A63 Hull Road to the south-

east of the main building.  The access will be formed as a priority junction with a 
ghost island on Hull Road. The access then leads to a main car park with access 
across a public footpath to a main arrival area.  There is a shared pedestrian/cyclist 
access point opposite the road junction of Hull Road and Bennymoor Lane. The 
proposal shows 10 secure and sheltered cycle parking spaces and 76 car parking 
spaces, with 6 mini bus spaces.   

 
10.28 There are several S278 works proposed which include the new access, ghost island, 

pedestrian puffin crossing, 2 x uncontrolled pedestrian crossings, a footway along the 
site boundary connecting pedestrians to the site and associated signing and lining. 

 
10.29 In terms of accessibility, the site is within walking distance of Osgodby and Barlby, 

however the Transport Assessment identifies that due to the nature of the school, 
most trips which includes all student trips are likely to be carried out by motor 
vehicles. However, the proposed footway and crossing points do allow for 
connectivity to the site and the village. 

 
10.30 The Local Highway officer assessed the information and was satisfied that the 76 car 

parking spaces were sufficient. 7 of these spaces are to be allocated as 
visitor parking. Out of the 100 pupils 80 of these will be transported to the site by 
minibus. There are 6 minibus parking spaces on site as well as the availability of the 
drop off/pick up area. The 70 staff if made up into FTE’s, will result in 63 FTE. It is 
therefore considered that there would be sufficient on-site parking for the staff, 
visitors and private car drop offs within the 76 car parking spaces and the drop off 
area. 

 
10.31 The highway officer also required a suite of other information from the applicants, 

which included changes to the Transport Assessment to reflect up to date data, 
collision data from NYC, changes to the Construction Environmental Management 
Plan, detailed drawings of the junction, construction details, kerb layout, vehicle 
tracking, the Circulation Strategy and amendments to the Design and Access 
Statement. The applicants provided this revised information.  

 
10.32 The amended details satisfied the highway officer who concluded that the proposed 

new access and highway works would enable the development to function 
appropriately without causing harm to highway safety.  The majority of the detail was 
in the approved documents, however conditions covering the construction of 
adoptable roads and footways, visibility splays, details of cycle parking, access 
turning, travel plans, delivery times and out of hours trip generation were all 
suggested as necessary planning conditions.  Active Travel England also raised no 
objections to the proposal providing a condition was imposed regarding the need for 
a travel plan. 

 

Page 23



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

14 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

10.33 Given the above, the impact on highway safety would be acceptable in accordance 
with Policies ENV1, T1 and T2 of the Selby District Local Plan, Policy SP19 of the 
Core Strategy and national policy contained within the NPPF. 

 
Public Rights of Way 

 
10.34 SDLP Policy T8 seeks to protect the public rights of way (PROW) network.  PROW 

35.5/5/1 runs through south through the site from Hull Road in the north, bearing 
south-west after the application site towards the A19.  The route is lined by 
hedgerows as it passes through the site.  It then crosses open fields to the south. 

  
10.35 It is intended to retain the PROW in its current position, however a section of the 

hedge will be removed where it crosses the access point between the car park and 
school buildings.  The applicant has indicated either a wooden or metal swing gate 
with latch to be proposed at these points.  These would be closed, but not locked, at 
the start and finish of the school day, with school staff present at these times to 
ensure pupil safeguarding. This will allow people using the footpath to walk its full 
length, with the latched gate only necessary to define the crossing area which will be 
monitored by staff.  
 

10.36 The removal of part of the hedge will impact on the experience of this section of the 
PROW by users, however the remainder of the existing hedge will be maintained, 
and the route is untouched.  The PROW is not entirely rural, exiting the village and 
the crossing the A19, with long distance views of sizeable industry. 
 

10.37 No objections have been raised from the NYC Footpaths Officer or recreational 
groups.  It is not considered therefore that the proposal would result in a significant 
adverse effect on the route. The proposal therefore complies with SDLP Policy T8.   

 
Heritage Considerations 
 

10.38 When considering proposals for development which affect a Listed Building or its 
setting, regard is to be made to Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas Act) 1990 which requires the Local Planning Authority to 'have 
special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any 
features of a special architectural or historic interest which it possesses'. 
 

10.39 Also relevant are policies ENV1 and ENV 24 of Selby Local Plan (2005) and policies 
SP18 and SP19 of Core Strategy. These reflect national policy contained in the 
NPPF which relates to development affecting the significance of heritage assets and 
is include paragraphs 200 to 203 and 205 to 208. 
 

10.40 There are no designated heritage assets within or adjacent to the site.  To the south, 
at the junction of the A19 and A63, Magazine Farm is Grade II listed.  Given that the 
proposed site layout does not go beyond that of St Leonards Avenue which stretches 
in a linear fashion to the south, it is considered that the development will be 
contained within the village of Osgodby and will not encroach further that what 
already is currently in place.  It is not considered that there would be any harm to the 
setting of the listed buildings. 
 

10.41 An archaeological desk-based assessment and geophysical survey have been 
submitted and assessed by the Principal Archaeologist who advises that the results 
of the archaeological assessments have been limited and it is unlikely that the 
proposal will have a significant impact on archaeological remains.   
 

10.42 It is not considered that the proposal will result in harm to above or below ground 
heritage assets. As such the proposal complies with Section 66(1) of the Planning 

Page 24



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

15 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 and national and local planning 
policies. 
 
Ecology and Biodiversity 

 
10.43 Relevant policies in respect of nature conservation include Policy ENV1 (5) of the 

Selby District Local Plan and Policy SP18 of the Core Strategy which accord with 
paragraph 180 of the NPPF. Point d) of Paragraph 180 (NPPF) recognises the need 
for the planning system to contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by recognising the wider benefits of ecosystems and minimising impacts 
on and providing net gains in relation to biodiversity.   

 
10.44 The application is supported by an Ecological Impact Assessment, Biodiversity Net 

Gain Assessment and Shadow Habitats Regulations Screening Assessment. 
 

10.45 The application was submitted prior to the introduction of mandatory Biodiversity Net 
Gain (BNG) for Major sites on 12th February 2024.  The application therefore is not 
required to show the mandatory BNG.  The application however does demonstrate 
through additional landscaping that net gains over 10% will be achieved for habitat 
units and hedgerow units.   

 
10.46 The Council’s Ecologist has considered the Shadow Habitats Regulations 

Assessment and considers that it is a comprehensive, well evidenced assessment 
which the Council will adopt. The assessment finds that there would be no additional 
recreation pressures expected within designated nature conservation sites of the 
Lower Derwent Valley SAC/SPA/Ramsar, Skipwith Common SAC or Humber Estuary 
SAC/SPA/ Ramsar as a result of the proposed development.  

 
10.47 Conditions are requested covering lighting, site clearance and construction, 

production of method statements for protected species, production of a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and Landscape Ecological Management 
Plan (LEMP). 

 
Landscape Impact 

 
10.48 Policy ENV1 requires that account is taken of the effect of a proposal upon the 

character of the area and the potential loss, or adverse effect upon, features 
important to the character of the area. CS Policy SP18 requires the high quality and 
local distinctiveness of the natural and man-made environment to be sustained by 
safeguarding and, where possible, enhancing the historic and natural environment 
including landscape character. Policy SP19 requires development to incorporate new 
and existing landscaping as an integral part of the design of schemes, including off-
site landscaping for large sites and sites on the edge of settlements where 
appropriate. 
  

10.49 NPPF paragraph 135 states “Planning policies and decisions should ensure that 
developments… (b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
appropriate and effective landscaping; (c) are sympathetic to local character and 
history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not 
preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased 
densities)”. 

 
10.50 The proposal is supported by a landscape plan and a Landscape and Visual Impact 

Appraisal (LVIA).  The Landscape Consultant has assessed the LVIA and concludes 
that it makes a reasonable appraisal of the landscape and visual effects, the most 
notable of which are from the A63 Hull Road (moderate-minor), the PROW through 
the site (minor) and from the dwellings that overlook the site (moderate to major). 

Page 25



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

16 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
10.51 In terms of mitigation, the proposed landscaping shows a new native hedge around 

the perimeter of the site, including alongside the A63 Hull Road, with tree planting 
across the entire site.  Areas of wildflower meadow are shown to the east and south 
of the car parking.  The proposed landscaping is considered acceptable subject to a 
condition requiring a detailed scheme. 

 
Loss of agricultural land 

 
10.52 Policy SP18 seeks that the high quality and local distinctiveness of natural and 

manmade environments will be sustained by, amongst other things, steering 
development to areas of least environmental and agricultural quality. The NPPF 
advises that decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural environment by 
recognising the economic and other benefits of the Best and Most Versatile Land 
(BMVL) (land in Grades 1, 2 and 3a).   
 

10.53 It is noted that objections have been received to the application on the basis of loss 
of BMVL.  

 
10.54 Natural England must be consulted on development proposals that are both:  

• likely to cause the loss (or likely cumulative loss) of 20ha or more of BMV land 

• not in accordance with an approved development plan 

Even though the site is not in accordance with an approved development plan, as the 
site is less than 20ha in size, there is no requirement to consult Natural England on 
the proposal. 

 
10.55 The Agricultural Land Classification submitted with the application confirms that the 

site consists of Grade 1 soil (1.3ha) to the north of the site and Subgrade 3a soil 
(0.83ha) to the south of the site.  Selby Area benefits from a high proportion of BMVL 
and the need to safeguard it is not as critical as it may be in other location.  It is 
inevitable that to deliver future development BMVL will be lost.  It is considered that 
the minor harm that would potentially result from the loss of a small amount of BMVL 
would be outweighed by the broader social and economic benefits of school 
provision. 

 
Flood Risk and Drainage 

  
10.56 Core Strategy Policy SP15 and Chapter 14 of the NPPF set out the key 

considerations in terms of flooding and drainage.  A Flood Risk and Drainage 
Strategy was submitted in support of the application.   

 
Flood Risk 
 

10.57 The majority of the site lies within Flood Zone 1 with a small area on the southern 
boundary within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The application is for an educational 
establishment, which is considered a ‘more vulnerable’ land use in Annex 3 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  It is therefore necessary for the application to 
pass the Sequential Test and Exception Test and to be supported by a site-specific 
flood risk assessment (FRA), which can demonstrate that: 

 
(a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that 
outweigh the flood risk; and 

 
(b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its 
users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood 
risk overall. Page 26



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

17 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
10.58 A sequential test has been submitted in support of the application, as set out in 

section Principle of Development, which demonstrates that there are no other sites 
available that are capable of accommodating the school within Selby Area.  It is also 
noted that all buildings are to be located to the north of the site within Flood Zone 1, 
with only a small section to the south within Flood Zones 2 and 3, which comprise 
sports facilities and landscaping.   

 
10.59 In terms of the Exceptions Test, the wider sustainability benefits of the proposed 

school are substantial and are considered to outweigh the flood risk.  The buildings 
are located within Flood Zone 1 and it would only be the outdoor sporting facilities 
that would be are affected in the event of a flood. 

 
10.60 The Environment Agency have assessed the FRA and have raised no objection.   
 

Drainage 
 

10.61 The submission was accompanied by a SuDS Drainage Strategy & Flood Risk 
Assessment.  This showed the proposal will use the mains sewer for the disposal of 
foul sewerage. Surface water will discharge to an ordinary drain, which then drains 
into the Osgodby Syphon Drain which is maintained by the IDB running to the south 
of the site.  Details of the discharge rates were detailed.  The Internal Drainage Board 
(IDB) and Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) have been consulted on the application.  
Following receipt of additional information (flow rotes of the water) the IDB has raised 
no objection subject to conditions.  The LLFA also removed their initial objection on 
the basis that the IDB were satisfied.  The submission did not contain any detail on 
exceedance or maintenance plans and therefore these have been conditioned. 

 
10.62 It is considered that with regards flood risk and drainage, the proposal is acceptable 

and complies with national and local planning policies in this regard. 
 

 Minerals and Waste 
 
10.63 The application site is located within a Minerals and Waste Safeguarding Area for 

sand and gravel and the proposal does not fall within the exemption criteria stated in 
paragraph 8.55 of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (2022).  The relevant policy is 
Policy S02 (Developments proposed within Safeguarded Surface Mineral Resource 
Areas). 

 
10.64 A Minerals Assessment has been submitted and reviewed by the NYC Minerals 

Officer who raises no comment.  Given the sites location adjacent to dwellings, it 
would not be considered practical or suitable to extract sand and gravel in this 
location without unacceptable impact on local communities.  There is no conflict with 
the Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 
 
Community Use 

 
10.65 The indoor sports hall and dining area, along with the outdoor sports pitches are 

proposed to be made available to community use outside of school hours.  This 
would supplement existing sport and recreation facilities in the immediate area and is 
supported as it would promote health and recreation as well as community benefits.  
A condition to secure a community use agreement for the management of these 
facilities is proposed.  

 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

18 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

11.0 PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 
 
11.1  The site comprises agricultural land on the western edge of Osgodby.  The site lies 

outside of the development limit for the village.  The proposal for a SEND school in 
this location on the edge of the settlement limit of Osgodby would accord with Policy 
CS 2 of the Local Plan. The location is sustainable being close to a principal town 
with good transport routes and will be of benefit to the Local Plan area.  Sufficient 
scope exists within Core Strategy Policy SP2 which allows for well-designed new 
buildings in the countryside and the proposal accords with the draft Local Plan 
allocation.  The proposal is therefore acceptable in principle. 

 
11.2 The development is acceptable with respect to impacts on highway safety, the impact 

on the PROW, heritage assets, residential amenity, flood risk and drainage, ecology, 
mineral and waste, and biodiversity and contamination subject to conditions. 

 
11.3 The benefits of providing a SEND school to meet the needs of the local community 

weigh in favour of the proposal.  The proposed development would also result in 
economic benefits during the construction phase; environmental benefits through 
provision of landscaping and BNG; community and sporting/health benefits from out-
of-hours use of the school hall and playing pitches.  

 
11.4 It is considered that the proposed development is acceptable in planning terms 

subject to the recommended conditions.  

 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

 

12.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions listed below: 

Time Limit 
 

01. The development for which permission is hereby granted shall be begun within a 
period of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason:  
In order to comply with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Plans 
 

02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
plans/drawings listed below: 

 
- Topographical Survey Layout 1-3 - 107263 Rev 00 

- Typical Soft Landscaping Detail - CONFIG-ALA-ZZ-XX-DR-L-9401 P02 

- Proposed Drainage Layout - FS0907-CUR-ZZ-ZZ-D-C-9200-P09 

- Existing Drainage Easement Surface Level Alterations FS0907-CUR-ZZ-ZZ-

D-C-9203-P01 

- Location Plan HW2101-SS-101 Ver T0 

- Sign Schedule545 – Children Warning Sign & “School” Suppl.Plate HW2101-

SS-1202 Ver T0 

- Sign Schedule 670 Speed Limits 20 & 40  HW2101-SS-1203 Ver T0 

- Sign Schedule Diag.543 Signal Warning Sign +670(50) Repeater HW2101-

SS-1204 Ver T0 

- Sign Schedule Directions Sign DS01 & DS 02 HW2101-SS-1205 Ver T0 

Page 28



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

19 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

- Sign Schedule Direction Sign DS03-Refuse Sign Faces HW2101-SS-1206 

Ver T0 

- Sign Schedule 506.1L Side Road Ahead – Post Only HW2101-SS-1207 Ver 

T0 

- S278 Agreement Layout HW2101/SS/102 Ver T04 

- Longitudinal Sections HW2101/SS/103 Ver T02 

- Vehicle Tracking HW2101/SS/104 Ver T0 

- General Arrangement HW2101/SS/105 Ver T02 

- Kerbing Layout HW2101/SS/1101 Ver T02 

- Traffic Signs and Road Markings HW2101/SS/1201 Ver T02 

- Setting Out HW2101/SS/2000 Ver T02 

- Site Clearance Plan HW2101/SS/201 Ver T02 

- Pavement Design HW2101/SS/701 Ver T03 

- Construction Details HW2101/SS/702 Ver T02 

- Traffic Sign & Ducting Details NY7-033-P Rev 0 

- General Arrangement for Street Lighting Ver P0 

- General Arrangement for Street Lighting (Schematic Cable Layout) Ver P0 

 
- External Lighting Layout FS0907-RPS-ZZ-ZZ-D-E-6314 P02 

- Drainage General Arrangement HW2101-SS-501 T04 

- Impermeable Areas Plan HW2101-SS-502 T02 

- Drainage Construction Details HW2101-SS-504 T02 

 
- Lighting Plan 2309012DNA 

- Whole Site Plan FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0003-P13 

- Site Landscape Plan – 1 of 4 FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0004-P03 

- Site Landscape Plan – 2 of 4 FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0005-P03 

- Site Landscape Plan – 3 of 4 FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0006-P03 

- Site Landscape Plan – 4 of 4 FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0007-P06 

- Access and Security Strategy  FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-000-P09 

- Circulation Strategy FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0009-P08 

 
- Site Sections FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0405-P07 

- Illustrative Masterplan FS0907-ONE- XX-ZZ-DR-L-0801-P05 

- Proposed Ground Floor Plan FS0907-STL-01-00-D-A-0100-P01 

- Proposed First Floor Plan FS0907-STL-01-01-D-A-0110-P01 

- Proposed Roof Plan FS0907-STL-01-RF-D-A-0120-P01 

- South & East Elevations FS0907-STL-01-ZZ-D-A-0200-P02 

- North & West Elevations FS0907-STL-01-ZZ-D-A-0201-P02 

- GA Building Sections FS0907-STL-01-ZZ-D-A-0300-P01 

- External Visuals FS0907-STL-01-ZZ-I-A-0601-P01 

- External Visuals FS0907-STL-01-ZZ-D-A-0900-P01 

- Existing Site Plan FS0907-STL-ZZ-ZZ-D-A-0901-P01 

- Proposed Site Plan FS0907-STL-ZZ-ZZ-D-A-0902-P01 

- Extent of Works Plan HW2101/SS/105-T01 

- Existing Utility Services Layout NYL-BNB-00-XX-Dr-ME-0301-S2-P1 

 
- SuDS Drainage Strategy and Flood Risk Assessment FS0907-CUR-XX-XX-T-

C-0002 P07 Issued 14.02.2024. 

 

Page 29



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

20 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

- Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) Rev G 

 

- DEIR Construction Method Statement FS0907-BNK-XX-XX-T-X-3087 P02 

 

- Framework Travel Plan V03 dated 21.3.24 

 

Reason:  
For the avoidance of doubt. 

 
Materials 
 

03 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the materials to be used in the construction of 
the hard surfaces, exterior walls and roof of the building hereby permitted shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
construction above ground of the school commences.  Development shall thereafter 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason:  
In the interests of visual amenity and in order to comply with Plan Policy ENV1. 

 
Drainage 

 
04. There shall be no piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to the 

completion of surface water drainage works, details of which will have been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. If discharge to public sewer is 
proposed, the information shall include, but not be exclusive to: 
i) evidence that other means of surface water drainage have been properly 
considered and why they have been discounted; and 
ii) the means of discharging to the public sewer network at a rate of 3.3 litres per 
second to be agreed by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the statutory 
sewerage undertaker. 
 
Reason:  
To ensure that no surface water discharges take place until proper provision has 
been made for its disposal. 

 
05 The surface water drainage works shall be constructed in accordance with the SuDS 

Drainage Strategy & Flood Risk Assessment by Curtins - FS0907-CUR-XX-XX-T-C-
0002 - Revision: P07 - dated 14 February 2024. Any changes to the scheme must be 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Ouse & Derwent 
Internal Drainage Board, and then implemented to the reasonable satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority before the development is brought into use. 
 
Reason:  
To ensure the development is provided with satisfactory means of drainage and to 
reduce the risk of flooding. 

 
06. No development shall take place until an appropriate Exceedance Flow Plan for the 

site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Site design must be such that when SuDS features fail or are exceeded, exceedance 
flows do not cause flooding of properties on or off site. This is achieved by designing 
suitable ground exceedance or flood pathways. Runoff must be completely contained 
within the drainage system (including areas designed to hold or convey water) for all 
events up to a 1 in 30 year event. The design of the site must ensure that flows 
resulting from rainfall in excess of a 1 in 100 year rainfall event are managed in 
exceedance routes that avoid risk to people and property both on and off site.  

Page 30



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

21 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
Reason:  
To prevent flooding to properties during extreme flood events and to mitigate against 
the risk of flooding on and off the site.  
 

07. No development shall take place until a suitable maintenance of the proposed SuDS 
drainage scheme arrangement has been demonstrated to the local planning 
authority. Details with regard to the maintenance and management of the approved 
scheme to include; drawings showing any surface water assets to be vested with the 
statutory undertaker/highway authority and subsequently maintained at their 
expense, and/or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the approved 
drainage scheme/sustainable urban drainage systems throughout the lifetime of the 
development. If the drainage system is to be adopted by Yorkshire 
Water/Northumbria Water a maintenance plan should be included up to the date at 
which it is vested.  
 
Reason:  
To prevent the increased risk of flooding and to ensure the future maintenance of the 
sustainable drainage system  

 
Highways 
 

08. No part of the development to which this permission relates must be brought into use 
until the carriageway and any footway or footpath from which it gains access is 
constructed to binder course macadam level or block paved (as approved) and 
kerbed and connected to the existing highway network with any street lighting 
installed and in operation. 

 
Reason: 
To ensure safe and appropriate access and egress to the premises, in the interests of 
highway safety and the convenience of all prospective highway users. 
 

09. There must be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the 
application site at Land off Hull Road, Osgodby until splays are provided giving clear 
visibility of 120 metres measured along the vehicle track of the major road from a 
point measured 2.4 metres down the centre line of the access road.  In measuring the 
splays, the eye height must be 1.05 metres and the object height must be 0.6 metres.  
Once created, these visibility splays must be maintained clear of any obstruction and 
retained for their intended purpose at all times. 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of highway safety. 
 

10. No part of the development must be brought into use until the access, parking, 
manoeuvring and turning areas for all users at Land off Hull Road, Osgodby have 
been constructed in accordance with the details approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Once created these areas must be maintained clear of any 
obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all times. 

 
Reason: 
To provide for appropriate on-site vehicle facilities in the interests of highway safety  
and the general amenity of the development. 
 

11. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a Travel Plan must be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The Travel Plan will include:  

 

• agreed targets to promote sustainable travel and reduce vehicle trips and emissions 
Page 31



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

22 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

within specified timescales and a programme for delivery; 

• a programme for the delivery of any proposed physical works; 

• effective measures for the on-going monitoring and review of the travel plan; 

• a commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives for a period of at least five 
years from first occupation of the development, and;  

• effective mechanisms to achieve the objectives of the Travel Plan by both present 
and future occupiers of the development. 
 

The development must be carried out and operated in accordance with the approved 
Travel Plan.  Those parts of the Approved Travel Plan that are identified therein as 
being capable of implementation after occupation must be implemented in 
accordance with the timetable contained therein and must continue to be 
implemented as long as any part of the development is occupied. 
 
Reason: 
To establish measures to encourage more sustainable non-car modes of transport. 
 

12. The development must be carried out and operated in accordance with the approved 
Travel Plan.. Those parts of the Approved Travel Plan that are identified therein as 
being capable of implementation after occupation must be implemented in 
accordance with the timetable contained therein and must continue to be 
implemented as along as any part of the development is occupied. 

 
Reason: 
To establish measure to encourage more sustainable non-car modes of transport. 
 

13. Prior to first occupation of the school, details of the proposed cycle parking area and 
finished materials to the shared foot/cycleways within the site shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The details shall include dimensions 
and spacing between cycle stands compliant with Table 11-2 of the LTN 1/20 (Cycle 
Infrastructure Design), while pedestrian and cycling routes should comprise smooth 
sealed solid surfaces.  The agreed details shall be implemented.  

 
 Reason: 
 In order to deliver sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in private 

motor vehicular journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking, wheeling 
and cycling where practicable. 

 
14. Prior to the occupation of the school and any out of hours activities been undertaken, 

details of the types of out of hours use, including sports, performances and meetings, 
frequencies and trip generations and their effect on the surrounding highway network 
should be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in conjunction 
with the Local Highway Authority. 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of the area. 

 
15. Refuse collection shall not take place between the hours of 08:15 – 09:30 and 14:45 

– 15:45. 
 

Reason: 
To avoid conflict with school pick up and drop off times in the interests of highway 
safety. 

 
Ecology 
 

Page 32



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

23 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

16. Prior to commencement of development a Construction Environmental Management 
Plan (CEMP) shall be provided for the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority.  The CEMP shall include details of: 
 
a. Site clearance and construction works, which should be undertaken outside of the 
bird breeding season  
b. Site clearance should avoid damage to hedgerows and trees in line with BS 
5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction.  
c.Production of method statements for protected species including for bats, birds and 
reptiles.  
 

  Reason: 
To ensure compliance with the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 and policies ENV1(5) 
of the Selby District Local Plan, Policy SP18 of the Core Strategy.  
 

 
17. Prior to commencement of development a Landscape Ecological Management Plan 

(LEMP) shall be provided for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  
The LEMP shall include details of long-term monitoring and management of the 
proposed ecological mitigation and enhancement works. 

 
 Reason:  

To ensure the scheme is developed and managed for future years in accordance 
with the approved detail and therefore maintained. This will ensure the development 
accords with Policies SP18, SP19 of the Core Strategy and Local Plan Policy ENV1.  

 
Landscape 
 

18. Within three months of commencement of development a detailed planting scheme in 
accordance with the approved Site Landscaping Plans (FS0907-ONE-XX-Z-DR-L-
0006-P03 to P07) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This shall include the species, stock size, density (spacing), and position of 
trees, shrubs and other plants; seed mixes, sowing rates, and mowing regimes; tree 
planting details including means of support, protection, and watering. The proposed 
tree planting shall be compatible with existing and proposed utilities. This scheme 
shall be implemented within a period of six months of the practical completion of the 
development. Any trees or plants which within a period of fifteen years from the 
substantial completion of the planting scheme die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees alternatives in 
writing. This also applies to any existing trees that are shown to be retained within the 
approved landscape scheme. 

 
Reason:  
In the interests of amenity and in order to comply with Plan Policy ENV1. 
 
Trees 
 

19. Before any materials are brought onto the site or any development is commenced, 
the developer shall submit an agreed specification for root protection area (RPA) 
fencing and ground protection measures in line with the requirements of British 
Standard BS 5837: 2012 Trees in Relation to Construction – Recommendations, or 
any subsequent amendments to that document, around the trees or shrubs or 
planting to be retained, as indicated on the approved plan and for the entire area as 
specified in accordance with BS 5837:2012. The developer shall maintain such 
fences and ground protection until all development the subject of this permission is 
completed.  

Page 33



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

24 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of amenity and in order to comply with Plan Policy ENV1. 
 

20. No operations shall commence on site in connection with the development hereby 
approved (including any demolition work, soil moving, temporary access construction 
and/or widening or any operations involving the use of motorised vehicles or 
construction machinery) until the root protection area (RPA) and ground protection 
works required by the approved tree protection scheme (above) are in place. No 
excavations for services, storage of materials or machinery, parking of vehicles, 
deposit or excavation of soil or rubble, lighting of fires or disposal of liquids shall take 
place within any area designated as being fenced off or otherwise protected in the 
approved root protection area scheme. The level of the land within the fenced areas 
shall not be altered without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason:  
In the interests of amenity and in order to comply with Plan Policy ENV1. 
 
Contamination 
 

21. In the event that unexpected land contamination is found at any time when carrying 
out the approved development, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and, if 
remediation is necessary, a remediation strategy must be prepared, which is subject 
to approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of 
measures identified in the approved remediation strategy, a verification report must 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. It is strongly 
recommended that all reports are prepared by a suitably qualified and competent 
person.  

 
Reason:  
To ensure that the site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground 
conditions and any risks arising from land contamination.  

 
Other 

 
22. The new playing field shall be constructed and laid out in accordance with standards 

and methodologies set out in the guidance note “Natural Turf for Sport” (Sport 
England, May 2011), before it is first brought into use. 

 
Reason:  
To ensure the quality of pitches is satisfactory and they are available for use and to 
accord with Policy RT3.  
 

23. Prior to the development being brought into use, a Community Use Scheme shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, after 
consultation with Sport England. The Scheme shall include details of pricing policy, 
hours of use, access by non-school users/non-members, management  
responsibilities and include a mechanism for review. The approved Scheme shall be 
implemented upon commencement of use of the development.  

 
Reason:  
To secure well managed safe community access to the sports facility, to ensure 
sufficient benefit to the development of sport and to accord with Policy RT3 
 

24. The multi-use games area hereby permitted shall not be constructed other than 
substantially in accordance with Sport England Guidance Note: Artificial sports 

Page 34



 

commrep/ZG2023/1263/FULM 

25 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

surfaces or the National Governing Body Technical Design Guidance on multi use 
games areas.  
 
Reason:  
To ensure the development is fit for purpose and sustainable and to accord with 
Policy RT3. 

 
 Environmental Health 
 
25. All noise emissions resulting from fixed plant installations at the buildings, the subject 

of this application, shall be treated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Details of noise attenuation and/or extract systems shall be submitted to and agreed 
in writing before the use of the buildings commence. The agreed scheme shall be 
maintained throughout the life of the development.  

  
The cumulative level of sound, when determined externally under free-field 
conditions, shall not exceed the representative background sound level at nearby 
sensitive receptors. All noise measurement/predictions and assessments made to 
determine compliance shall be made in accordance with British Standard 4142:2014: 
Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound, and/or its 
subsequent amendments.  
 
Reason:  
In the interests of amenity and in order to comply with Plan Policy ENV1. 
 

26. Multi-use games area(s) (MUGAs) and sports pitches shall only be used between the 
hours of 08:00 and 22:00hrs.  
 
Reason:  
In the interests of amenity and in order to comply with Plan Policy ENV1. 
 

27. Deliveries to and from the school shall only take place between the hours of 08:00 
and 18:00hrs Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 and 13:00hrs Saturdays, and not at all on 
Sundays and Bank Holidays.  

 
Reason:  
In the interests of amenity and in order to comply with Plan Policy ENV1. 

 
28. Prior to the use of the building hereby permitted commencing, as scheme showing 

the operational hours of the car park lighting shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing.  Once agreed the lighting shall be operated in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 

  
Reason: 

 To ensure the parking areas are not illuminated through nighttime hours, to reduce 
the impact on the amenities of nearby residential dwellings and to limit the impact on 
the character of the landscape at night in accordance with Policy ENV 1 of the Local 
Plan.  

 
Target Determination Date:15.4.24 (extension of time agreed)  

 

Case Officer: Linda Drake  
 

Appendix A – Site Plan  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



A 63

A

Pitch markings are for spatial
demonstration purposes only. Pitch is

undrained amenity grass/soft social space
(can be coned out for different sports and

activities)

H

H

H
H

H

H

H

H

H

H

UP

UP

6001/ KIT02
kitchen prep/ servery suite138 m² (38.0 m²)

6006/ TOC02
accessible/ staff changing 1

5 m² (6.0 m²)

6007/ TOC21
accessible/ staff toilet 1

5 m² (3.5 m²)

6008/ TOC15
individual toilet (pupil) 1

3 m² (2.0 m²)

6010/ TOC05
small hygiene room(1 door)110 m² (8.0 m²)

6011/ TOC31
supervisable toilets (earlyyrs) 17 m² (6.0 m²)

6013/ TOC13
pupil toilet suite(s) 2

7 m² (6.0 m²)

6016/ TOC15
individual toilet (pupil) 1

3 m² (6.0 m²)

6017/ TOC15
individual toilet (pupil) 2

3 m² (6.0 m²)

6021/ TOC21
accessible/ staff toilet 1

4 m² (3.5 m²)

6026/ PLA20
Plant rooms (electricalintake)5 m² (12.0 m²)

6037/ CIR13stairwell(s) 139 m² (27.0 m²)

6038/ CIR14stairwell(s) 224 m² (27.0 m²)

6041/ CIR13lift 13 m² (4.0 m²)

6044/ CIR03draught lobby MainEntrance11 m² (6.0 m²)

50
19

/ S
TH

10
ch

ai
r/

 ta
bl

e 
st

or
e(

s)
 (o

ff 
ha

ll)
1

8 
m

² (
8.

0 
m

²)

5020/ STT10
general store (central stock)

8 m² (8.0 m²)

5021/ STN50
secure exam/ archive store15 m² (5.0 m²)

5022/ STN51medical store 15 m² (3.0 m²)

5023/ STH15
dining furniture store

12 m² (12.0 m²)

5024/ STN05nursery mobility
equipment/ buggy store 1

5 m² (5.0 m²)

5025/ CIR00
wheelchair/ appliancesbay(s) 12 m² (1.5 m²)

5027/ STN11
cloakroom (early years, 50%

circ) 110 m² (10.0 m²)

5028/ STN01
personal storage (coat

hooks) Primary 12 m² (3.0 m²)

5029/ STN01
personal storage (coat

hooks) Primary 22 m² (3.0 m²)

5035/ STN31cleaner's store(s) 12 m² (1.5 m²)

5037/ STN32
general store (maintenance)

8 m² (8.0 m²)

5005/ STT10
specialist store (off DT light

prac room) 15 m² (5.0 m²)

5006/ STT35
food store (off food room) 1

3 m² (2.5 m²)

5007/ STT35
food store (off food room) 2

2 m² (2.5 m²)

5009/ STT40
teaching store (off SENroom) 15 m² (5.0 m²)

5010/ STT40
teaching store (off SENroom) 25 m² (5.0 m²)

5011/ STT40
teaching store (off SENroom) 35 m² (5.0 m²)

5012/ STT40
teaching store (off SENroom) 45 m² (5.0 m²)

50
16

/ S
TT

08
dr

am
a 

st
or

e 
(o

ff 
ro

om
) 1

10
 m

² (
10

.0
 m

²)

5017/ STH00
PE store(s) (off hall) 1

18 m² (18.0 m²)

5018/ STH05external PE store 18 m² (8.0 m²)

4001/ OFF50
staff room (prep and social)162 m² (62.0 m²)

4004/ ADM09
reprographics/ MFD bay 1

5 m² (4.0 m²)

4006/ ADM21
kitchenette 2 (Primary 01)

6 m² (6.0 m²)

4007/ ADM21
kitchenette 3 (Primary 02)

6 m² (6.0 m²)

4011/ ADM11
head's office (meetingroom) 115 m² (15.0 m²)

4012/ ADM07
general office (2 recepdesks) 121 m² (21.0 m²)

4013/ OFF50parents' room 115 m² (15.0 m²)

4014/ ADM31
entrance/ reception (50%circ) 112 m² (12.0 m²)

4015/ ADM03reception3 m² (3.0 m²)

4016/ OFF10
office/meeting (1-person) 1

9 m² (9.0 m²)

4020/ OFF20
office (visiting professionals)

12 m² (12.0 m²)

4021/ OFF33office/ workroom(premises) 111 m² (11.0 m²)

3001/ LIB50
primary library (ambulant)

13 m² (13.0 m²)

3004/ SEN02
SEN therapy/ MI room

12 m² (12.0 m²)

3006/ SEN31
small group/ quiet bay (off

classroom) 19 m² (9.0 m²)
3007/ SEN31

small group/ quiet bay (off
classroom) 29 m² (9.0 m²)

3008/ SEN31
small group/ quiet bay (off

classroom) 39 m² (9.0 m²)

3012/ SEN70
nursery sensory/ soft play

(ambulant)20 m² (20.0 m²)

3013/ SEN12
therapy room (ambulant) 1

12 m² (12.0 m²)

3016/ SEN40
sensory room (ambulant) 1

12 m² (12.0 m²)

3017/ SEN40
sensory room (ambulant) 2

12 m² (12.0 m²)

3018/ SEN14physiotherapy24 m² (24.0 m²)

3019/ SEN50
sensory/ immersion room

(ambulant)12 m² (12.0 m²)

2001/ SPH001-court sports hall
182 m² (180.0 m²)

2002/ DIN50
dining area (ambulant)

80 m² (80.0 m²)

1001/ PRI50EYFS zone 148 m² (48.0 m²)

1002/ PRI60EYFS zone 248 m² (48.0 m²)

1003/ PRA50
shared teaching Primary 1

83 m² (83.0 m²)

1004/ PRA50
shared teaching Primary 2

83 m² (83.0 m²)

1005/ PRA70Kitchenette 1 EYFS9 m² (9.0 m²)

1006/ PRA70
Food Room Primary 02

12 m² (12.0 m²)

1007/ PRA70
Food Room Primary 03

12 m² (12.0 m²)

1014/ DAT90
secondary DT workshop

(ambulant)62 m² (62.0 m²)

EYFS

EYFS

KS
3_

KS
4 

en
tra

nc
e

En
tra

nc
e

KS2

KS1

Store

DT

6045/ CIR03draught lobby PupilEntrance12 m² (6.0 m²)

se
rv

er
y

EYFS

KS5 & Egress

Changing

6012/ TOC13
pupil toilet suite(s) 17 m² (6.0 m²)

6005/ TOC51
pupil changing and showers

(ambulant) 117 m² (41.0 m²)

6004/ KIT40
kitchen toilet/ changingarea 14 m² (3.0 m²)

6003/ KIT21kitchen store(s) 14 m² (2.0 m²)

!
A!

B

!
B

!
C

!
D

6043/ CIR09main circulation 1
9 m² (354.0 m²)

6043b/ CIR09main circulation 1
32 m² (0.0 m²)

6043e/ CIR09main circulation 187 m² (0.0 m²)

60
43

g/
 C

IR
09

m
ai

n 
cir

cu
la

tio
n 

1
15

 m
² (

0.
0 

m
²)

5029a/ STN01
personal storage (coat

hooks) Primary 11 m² (0.0 m²)

5028a/ STN01
personal storage (coat

hooks) Primary 11 m² (0.0 m²)

!
D

!
D

!
D

!
D

6043f/ CIR09main circulation 126 m² (0.0 m²)

6005a/ TOC51
pupil changing and showers

(ambulant) 117 m² (0.0 m²)

6005b/ TOC51
gender neutral changing

and showers (ambulant) 1
4 m² (0.0 m²)

Rm. No.: 6043c

main circulation 1

!
D

!
D

LEGEND
Project Boundary

Tarmac [Vehicular Grade]
76no car parking bays incl 4no Accessible, 14no EV bays & 6no Mini Bus Bays

Tarmac [Pedestrian Grade]

Concrete Hardstanding [to bin store enclosure and sub station]

Macadam Surfacing to MUGA

Lockable Cycle Shelter [10no. Spaces]

5no. External Furniture [Benches]

Assorted Play Equipment with Wet Pour Surface

Proposed Bin Store
Metal euro bins in roofed timber compound. Concrete hardstanding base

External Canopies [6Lx2.3Wm]

2.4m High Weldmesh Fencing [with matching lockable gates where indicated]

Automatic Gate /Access Intercom

3.0m High Games Court Fencing [with matching gates where indicated]

4.5m  High Timber Sprinkler Compound Fencing [with matching gates where
indicated]

1.2m High timber fence & gates to EYFS play area & Habitat area

1.2m High gates to PRoW & Northern access

Handrail to stepped access

Electric Vehicle Bays [active charge unit]

Instant Native Hedge Planting

Flower Rich Perennial Planting

Amenity Grass Seed

Wild Flower Meadow Seeding

Damp Meadow Mix Seeding Swales

6no. External Storage Space

1no. 8x7m Horticultural Polytunnel [exposed top soil base in prepared timber
edge beds with accessible central path for wheelchairs]

4no. Horticultural Raised Beds [assorted heights, exposed top soil base]

Proposed Tree  Planting  [55 total including 15no tree replacements to
compensate for 5 lost due to highways works]

Existing Trees & Hedgerow to be Retained

Existing Trees & Hedgerow to be Removed

Extents of Services Easement

Hedgehog Circulation Gap

A

H

0

metres

5 10 20

1:500

SAILORS BETHEL, HORATIO STREET NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE, NE1 2PE  |  WWW.ONE-ENVIRONMENTS.CO.UK

NOTES

©One-Environments Ltd. This drawing is not to be scaled. All dimensions to be verified on site prior to commencement of works. Discrepancies, ambiguities and/or omissions between this drawing & information supplied by others must be reported immediately for clarification before proceeding

@ A1

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING No.

SCALE

REVISION

DRAWN BYDATE

STATUS

Bowmer + Kirkland

Selby Area SEND School

Whole Site Plan

FS0907-ONE-XX-ZZ-DR-L-0003

PRELIMINARY

1:500 05.07.23

P13

KP

DT

HORTICULTURE
GARDEN

6TH FORM
PRIMARY

SECONDARY

EARLY YEARS

MAIN
ARRIVAL

HARD PE GAMES COURT

SOFT PE

SPRINKLER TANK
COMPOUND

SUB
STATION

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P05 24.07.23 AB JE

Updated further to comments received

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P06 27.09.23 KP JE

Project boundary updated

FOR FULL EXTENT OF HIGHWAY WORKS
REFER TO DRAWING: HW2101/SS/701

PUBLIC RIGHT
OF WAY

PUBLIC RIGHT
OF WAY

MAINTENANCE ACCESS TO
REAR GARDEN BOUNDARIES

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P07 26.10.23 KP AB
MUGA court position and access updated in accordance with  necessary
adjustments to meet FRA guidance. Fence types clarified following comments
received. Accessible parking bay provision adjusted to 4 no. spaces.

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P08 27.10.23 KP JE

Project boundary updated

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P09 15.01.24 AB JE

Hedgehog gap requirement to fencing added to plan

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P10 02.02.24 KP JE

Revised in accordance with latest Architect's Ground Floor Plan

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P11 05.02.24 KP JE

Entrance hedge planting amended inline with NYC visibility comments

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P12 14.03.24 KP JE

 Maintenance gate added to northern boundary. 1no. additional cycle hoop added.

REVISION  | DATE  | BY  | CHECKED  |P13 22.03.24 KJ JE

Hedge updated to main entrance

P
age 37

ebooth-dale
Amended Drawing



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 12th March 2024
	4 ZG2023/1263/FULM - Planning application for the erection of Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) school at land to the south of Hull Road, Osgodby, Selby.
	APPENDIX A - Whole Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	0003




